# Certification

I declare	e to the best of my	knowledge and bel	ief that the attache	ed docu	ment(s) are true	electronic copies	of the
executed	d collective negotia	tions agreement(s)	and the included	summa	ry is an accurate	assessment of the	e collective
bargaini	ng agreement for the	he term beginning	01/01/2021	thru	12/31/2025		

Employer: County of Cumberland

County: Cumberland

Date: 05/26/2021

Name: PaigeDesiere
Print Name

Title: Director of Personnel and Human Resources

# **New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission**

# **NON-POLICE AND FIRE**

# **COLLECTIVE NEGOTIATIONS AGREEMENT SUMMARY FORM**

Line	#					
	SECTION I: Parties	and Term of Cont	racts			,
1	Public Employer:	Tumberlan.				unty
2	Employee Organizati	on: Association of	Supervising Ast	number of Employe	es in Unit:	9
3	Base Year Contract T	erm: 2016-	२०२0	New Contract Term:	70-1	2025
	SECTION II: Type o	f Contract Settlem	nent (please check	only one)		
4	Contract set	ttled without neutral	l assistance			
5	Contract set	tled with assistance	of mediator			
6	Contract set	tled with assistance	of fact-finder			
7	Contract set	cled with assistance o	of super-conciliator			
8	If contract was settle		•	a report with recom	mendations?	
J	Yes No		the fact midel 193de	. a report with recomm	nendations:	
	SECTION III: Salary	Base		and the second	The control of the co	
	The salary base is the the parties negotiate			xpired or expiring agr	eement. This is the	base cost from which
9	Salary Costs in Base Y	ear	\$ 868,	012		
10	Longevity Costs in Bas	se Year	\$	in the Control of the		
11	Total Salary Base		\$ 868,	015		
	SECTION IV: Salary	Increases for Each	Year of New Agr	eement*		
		Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
12	Effective Date (month/day/year)	1/1/21	1/1/22	1/1/23	1/1/24	1/1/25
13	Cost of Salary	40,823	34,772	28.291	71550	19010
1.1	Increments (\$)	1000				1 1 8 6 0
14	Salary Increase Above Increments (\$)		j			
15	Longevity Increase (\$)				y neptriorischen deutschen die zum und nebenderen ist der	a de la companya de l
16	Total \$ Increase (sum of lines 13-15)	140,823	34772	28,२१।	71,558	19,868
17	New Salary Base (\$)	908,835	943607	1971898	1993 456	11,013324
18	Percentage increase over prior year	14,7%	3,8%	3,0 %	2,2%	2.0%
	*If contract duration is	s longer than five yec	ars, please add an ac	dditional page.		

							Assista
Empl	over: Cumberla	and Coun	Employ	ee Organizatior	n: Association	in & Superi	/151/19 Page 2
	SECTION V: Increa		7				J
19	Item Description	Base Year	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
	10 011	Cost (\$)	Increase (\$)	Increase (\$)	Increase (\$)	Increase (\$)	Increase (\$)
	100-Call	127300	13900		1		
		Complete the state of the state		]			
	<u> </u>			1	<u> </u>	The state of the s	1
		<u> </u>	******				
			; }			1	
			and other than the state of the	-			
			:	1			
		ىنىدىنىدىنىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدىدى			The State of the S	Bull government of the same term in the context ind	
20	Totals(\$):	27,300	3 900		printer and the second		and the second s
		<del></del>	<del></del>				
	*If contract duration	is longer than five	e years, please add	d an additional <sub>l</sub>	page.		
	SECTION VI: Medic	cal Costs		Daga Van			
			•	Base Year			
21	Health Plan Cost			\$ 8/	531 st 88	,104	
22	Prescription Plan Cos	t		\$ 27	331 \$ 28	,380	
23	Dental Plan Cost			\$ 2,0	75 \$ [	429	
24	Vision Plan Cost			\$	720 s	690	

25

26

27

Total Cost of Insurance

Employee Insurance Contributions

Employee Contributions as % of Total Insurance Cost

Employ	: Cumberland County Employee Organization: Assistant Prosecutors Pa	ıge 3
	/I: Medical Costs (continued)	ge 3
28	Identify any insurance changes that were included in this CNA.	
	None	
29	ECTION VII: Certification and Signature The undersigned certifies that the foregoing figures are true:  rint Name: Secal & Coeneski  osition/Title: If Of Treasurer  ignature: If I are the foregoing figures are true:	
	end this completed and signed form along with an electronic copy of the contract and the signed certificat orm to: <a href="mailto:contracts@perc.state.nj.us">contracts@perc.state.nj.us</a>	ion
	I Public Employment Polations Commission	

NJ Public Employment Relations Commission

Conciliation and Arbitration

PO Box 429

Trenton, NJ 08625

Phone: 609-292-9898

Revised 8/2016

# **AGREEMENT**

# between

# ASSOCIATION OF SUPERVISORY ASSISTANT PROSECUTORS

and

# THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY PROSECUTOR AND THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

January 1, 2021 - December 31, 2025

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE 2: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	3
ARTICLE 3: NON-DISCRIMINATION	4
ARTICLE 4: ASSOCIATION DUES	5
ARTICLE 5: PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS	6
ARTICLE 6: EDUCATION AND TRAINING	7
ARTICLE 7: HOURS OF WORK	8
ARTICLE 8: OFFICE ENVIRONMENT	9
ARTICLE 9: EMPLOYEE SAFETY	10
ARTICLE 10: VACATIONS	11
ARTICLE 11: HOLIDAYS	12
ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE	13
ARTICLE 13: PERSONAL DAYS	14
ARTICLE 14: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	15
ARTICLE 15: OTHER PAID LEAVE FROM WORK	16

	Page
ARTICLE 16: MILITARY LEAVE	17
ARTICLE 17: FAMILY LEAVE	18
ARTICLE 18: WORKERS' COMPENSATION BENEFITS	19
ARTICLE 19: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND ACCESS	20
ARTICLE 20: PERSONNEL RECORDS	21
ARTICLE 21: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	22
ARTICLE 22: SALARIES AND WAGES	25
ARTICLE 23: LONGEVITY	26
ARTICLE 24: COUNTY HEALTH BENEFITS	27
ARTICLE 25: LIFE INSURANCE	29
ARTICLE 26: WORK CONTINUITY	30
ARTICLE 27: SEVERABILITY	31
ARTICLE 28: FULLY NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT	32
ARTICLE 29: TERM OF AGREEMENT	33

#### **PREAMBLE**

WHEREAS, said ASAP has been selected as the exclusive bargaining agent by the Employees hereinafter to be defined; and

WHEREAS, said ASAP has been in negotiations with the Prosecutor and the County; and

WHEREAS, the ASAP and the Prosecutor and the County have agreed upon certain terms of employment as a result of the negotiations carried on pursuant to law;

NOW, THEREFORE, subject to law as herein provided, the parties hereto, in consideration of the following mutual promises, covenants, and agreements contained herein do herein establish the following terms and conditions which shall govern the activities of the parties and all affected Employees:

#### **ARTICLE 1: RECOGNITION**

- 1. The Prosecutor and the County hereby recognize the ASAP as the sole and exclusive negotiations representative for all Senior Trial Attorneys and Team Leaders. Excluded from the ASAP are the First Assistant Prosecutor, Executive Assistant Prosecutor, Trial Chief and all other Assistant Prosecutors. The ASAP and each Employee covered by this Agreement expressly acknowledge the special employment relationship that exists whereby each covered person's employment is "at will" and that each covered Employee serves at the pleasure of the Prosecutor. Nothing herein shall be construed to abrogate state law and statute which defines "at will" employment, and, which vests the Prosecutor with legal powers and responsibilities in the exercise of its law enforcement and police power that cannot be bargained away.
- 2. Whenever titles are used in this Agreement, they shall be understood to include the plural as well as the singular and to include males and females. Except as otherwise specifically noted, a reference to "Employees" shall refer to all Employees in the negotiations unit.

#### **ARTICLE 2: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- 1. All of the rights, power and authority possessed by the Prosecutor and County prior to the signing of this Agreement, including and not limited to the Prosecutor's right to terminate "at will" Assistant Prosecutors, are retained exclusively by the Prosecutor, subject only to such limitations as are specifically provided in this Agreement. It is expressly acknowledged by the ASAP and the Employees that the Prosecutor has special legal powers which cannot be abridged or otherwise bargained away.
- 2. The Prosecutor hereby retains and reserves, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred and vested by the laws of the State of New Jersey, the Constitution of the State of New Jersey and the Constitution of the United States of America, including but without limitation the following rights, privileges and functions:
  - a. The executive management and administrative control of the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office, its properties and facilities, the activities of its Employees related to their employment, and the right to impose reasonable rules and regulations governing employment.
  - b. The right to hire all Employees, determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, their dismissal or demotion, the increase or decrease of salaries, promotion, reassignment and transfer of all such Employees.
  - c. The right to make reasonable rules or procedures, to determine schedules of work, as well as duties, responsibilities and assignments of all Employees, and to decide the number of Employees needed for any particular unit or assignment and to be in sole charge of the quality and quantity of work required.
  - d. The right to determine if, how and when automobiles will be assigned among Assistant Prosecutors; no County issued automobile may be used in any manner or at any time for personal use.
  - e. The right to terminate or suspend, with or without pay, any Employee with or without cause. There is no right of appeal.
  - f. The right to direct and assign the Employees, to plan, direct and control operations, to introduce new or different methods of operations in all respects to carry out the ordinary and customary functions of management as allowed by law and this Agreement.
- g. This Article 2 shall not be modified or altered in substance, scope or application.

# **ARTICLE 3: NON-DISCRIMINATION**

There shall be no employment discrimination or favoritism of Employees in regard to sex, sexual orientation, age, nationality race, color, national origin, religion, marital, parental or birth status, political affiliation or Association membership.

#### **ARTICLE 4: ASSOCIATION DUES**

- 1. **Dues Deductions.** The Employer agrees to make payroll deductions of Association dues if and when authorized to do so by the Employee(s) on the appropriate form. The Parties acknowledge that, as of the date of the execution of this Agreement, the ASAP does not collect dues from the Employees.
- 2. Withdrawal of Dues Check Off. In the event any Employee withdraws his/her authorization for dues deduction by notice to the Prosecutor's Office, such dues shall be halted as of the earlier of the next January 1 or July 1 following the date on which notice of withdrawal was filed, pursuant to N.J.SA. 52:14-15.9e.

# **ARTICLE 5: PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS**

- 1. It shall be the responsibility of the Employer to pay the fees and costs associated with dues for membership in and cost of meetings of the Cumberland County Bar Association and attendance at the annual Convention and College sponsored by the County Prosecutors Association of New Jersey, as approved in the sole discretion of the Prosecutor, and dues for membership in the New Jersey Assistant Prosecutor's Association.
- 2. The Prosecutor shall make direct electronic payment on behalf of Assistant Prosecutors (Employees) for the annual fee due for Attorney Registration payable by all attorneys in the State of New Jersey.

# ARTICLE 6: EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Employees covered by this Agreement who attend approved legal education or training courses, shall receive mileage reimbursement at the standard County rate or shall be provided a County vehicle to attend such training. If County vehicles are provided, the Employees shall be required, to the extent reasonable and feasible, to car pool. Any out-of-state travel expenses, including but not limited to airfare, lodging, etc. must be pre-approved by the Prosecutor. The Prosecutor shall pay for the full cost of registration and attendance at legal education or training courses. Employees shall receive regular pay for the hours spent attending the training or legal education. Employees must receive approval from the Prosecutor prior to attending said training to receive the above benefits.

#### ARTICLE 7: HOURS OF WORK

- 1. Assistant Prosecutors are professional employees and may be expected to work more than the general office hours set forth in Article 7.2 herein below without additional compensation as necessary to fulfill professional responsibilities and when as directed by the Prosecutor and or her designee to accomplish specific assignments of a priority nature.
- 2. General office hours are Monday through Friday from 8:30am to 4:30pm.
- 3. Pursuant to Article 2.2c and f, and as required pursuant to N.J.S.A. 2A:162-15 et. seq. and Attorney General Law Enforcement Directive No. 2016-6, the Prosecutor has directed, beginning on January 1, 2017, 24/7 staffing to satisfy prosecutor responsibilities for Criminal Justice Reform (referred to generally herein as "CJR"), including but not limited to precharging case screening, complaint-summons or complaint-warrants and affidavits of probable cause and preliminary law enforcement incident reports. Beginning on January 1, 2017 designated ASAP members have provided and shall continue to provide, as directed by the Prosecutor, primary and secondary back-up coverage. The Prosecutor shall retain sole discretion to continue, modify or change the CJR rotation. Among the factors which the Prosecutor may consider are the volume and nature of calls received.

Except as set forth in this Article 7.3, Article 7.1 shall remain in full force and effect.

4. Compensation for the CJR rotation (also referred to as the On-Call eCDR rotation) shall be:

On-call pay for eCDR responsibilities shall be set at a total of \$600.00 per week (Monday 8:30 a.m. through the following Monday 8:30 a.m.). The compensation shall be paid as follows: \$75.00 per day except for the day during the weekend (Saturday or Sunday) when first appearances/rights advisement hearings are scheduled to be held in virtual format. The rate for the weekend virtual court appearance shall be set at \$150.00. (Six days at \$75.00 for a total of \$450.00, one day at \$150.00 for a weekly total of \$600.00.)

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> CJR responsibilities for the Senior Trial Attorneys are separate and distinct from Senior Trial Attorney responsibilities for the Legal Advisor – On Call rotation. The Senior Trial Attorneys and other ASAP members who participate in the Legal Advisor – On Call rotation shall receive no additional compensation for that rotation.

#### **ARTICLE 8: OFFICE ENVIRONMENT**

# 1. Health and Safety

- a. The Employer shall at all times maintain safe and healthy working conditions for all Employees covered by this Agreement.
- b. A designated bargaining unit representative shall bring any health and safety concerns to the Prosecutor, or her designee, as the need arises. The parties agree to meet to discuss the concerns within five (5) business days.

#### 2. Office Reference Books

The Employer agrees to provide each Employee covered by this Agreement with legal reference books and online legal research sources necessary to the responsibilities of Assistant Prosecutors.

# 3. Meetings with the Prosecutor

There shall be a meeting between the Prosecutor, or her designee, and the Employees covered by this Agreement on a quarterly basis, if requested in writing by either party, to discuss the general environment and any labor-management issues of the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office. Such a meeting shall be scheduled by the ASAP and the Prosecutor through the Chief of Staff. Nothing herein shall preclude the ASAP from requesting, in writing, additional meetings.

# 4. Standard Operating Procedures.

- a. The Employer shall provide notice and copy to the ASAP of Standard Operating Procedures when such are updated, created, or eliminated.
- b. The Employer will provide notice to the ASAP of any new hire, resignation, retirement, promotion, demotion, or reassignment.

# ARTICLE 9: EMPLOYEE SAFETY

Employees covered by this Agreement, by the very nature of their duties, can be exposed to personal risk in the performance of said duties. Therefore, the Employer and the ASAP commit to maintain open communication regarding issues affecting Employee safety. This shall include, but not be limited to, building security, parking lot security, security in areas where Employees regularly travel to perform their duties, such as to and from the courthouse, and safety to and from the workplace from home. The Parties agree to consult and work with appropriate outside governmental agencies on security issues when the need arises.

#### **ARTICLE 10: VACATIONS**

- 1. Full-time employees shall be entitled to vacation with pay as follows:
- 2. Employees with less than one full year of service will receive one (1) working day for each month of service. Vacation days must be accrued and will not be advanced.
- 3. Vacation time will be accrued as follows:

Completion of 1 full year of service through 5 full years of service: 12 days

Completion of 5 full years of service through 12 full years of service: 15 days

Completion of 12 full years of service through 20 full years of service: 20 days

Subject to and as limited by Article 10.8, completion of more than 20 full years of service: 25 days

- 4. Employees may take vacations in periods of one-half (1/2) day increments with the approval of the Prosecutor.
- 5. If there is a conflict in a particular work area in which multiple employees are requesting the same vacations day(s), the senior employee shall have preference. Vacations shall be granted on a first come basis provided work requirements shall be met.
- 6. Employees shall be notified within ten (10) working days of submitting their vacation requests if the request was granted by their supervisor.
- 7. An employee may carry over up to five (5) unused vacation leave days from one year to the next.
- 8. Any employee hired on or after January 1, 2017 shall receive no more than 20 vacation days after the completion of 20 years of service, as provided in N.J.A.C. 4A:6-1.2(b)3.

# **ARTICLE 11: HOLIDAYS**

1. The official paid holidays, which are recognized holidays for the purposes of this Agreement are as follows:

New Years Day

Martin Luther King Day

Columbus Day

President's Day General Election Day

Good Friday Veterans Day
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day

Juneteenth Christmas

Fourth of July

2. In addition to the aforementioned holidays, the County will grant a holiday when the Governor, in his role as Chief Executive of the State of New Jersey, declares a holiday.

#### ARTICLE 12: SICK LEAVE

- Sick leave may be utilized by all full-time employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease or to care for an ill family member.
- 2. Each employee will be granted annual sick leave as follows:
- 3. One working day for each full month of service during the remaining months of the first calendar year of employment and fifteen (15) working days (1<sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> per month) for each calendar year thereafter. If an employee begins work after the fifth day of the month, sick leave is not earned for that month.
- 4. In all cases of illness, whether of short or long term, the employee is required to notify his or her superior of the reason for the absence at the earliest possible time but in no event less than his usual possible reporting time, or other time as required, or necessitated by the circumstances. An employee's failure to so notify his or her supervisor may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for that absence and constitute cause of disciplinary action.
- 5. An employee may use sick leave for periods of less than a full work day for any appropriate and approved reason or becoming ill while working.
- 6. When sick leave balances are exhausted, the Employer, at its discretion, may allow an employee to utilize vacation or other accrued leave for an employee's time off due to an illness or injury.
- 7. Employees transferring from one position to another within Cumberland County government will retain accumulated sick leave.
- 8. Where permitted by law, Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and New Jersey Family Leave Act (FLA) shall run concurrent with sick leave.

#### **ARTICLE 13: PERSONAL DAYS**

#### Personal Leave:

- 1. All employees covered in the contract shall be granted an annual allowance of four (4) days personal leave with pay. Newly hired employees shall be credited with the right to use such four (4) personal days, which days will be earned during year one of employment at the rate of one (1) day every three (3) months. Those leaving the employment of the Prosecutor who have then exceeded the use of personal days shall have the compensation for same deducted on a prorated basis from their last employment check; provided, however, that this shall not apply to retirees.
- 2. Personal leave shall not be cumulative and any such leave credit remaining unused by an employee at the end of the calendar year or upon separation shall be canceled. The employee must notify his supervisor at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance except in a case of bona fide emergency, whereby the supervisor may waive this requirement. Such personal day will be granted if there is no undue burden upon work requirements. The Employer will make every reasonable effort to grant employees the personal days off requested.
- 3. Priority in granting such request for personal leave:
  - (a) Emergencies
  - (b) Observation of religious or other days of celebration
  - (c) Employee personal business
- 4. Personal leave may be taken in conjunction with other types of paid leave.

# ARTICLE 14: BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- 1. All full-time employees shall be granted a leave of absence not exceeding three (3) working days from the date of death to the day of the funeral because of death of a member of their immediate family; and where the funeral services take place out of State, the leave of absence shall not exceed four (4) working days. Where the body of the deceased is transported into the State of New Jersey, the three (3) days shall be interpreted to mean working days; the three (3) days shall be computed from the time the body of the deceased arrives in New Jersey.
- 2. Immediate family is defined as father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, grandmother, grandfather, grandchildren, brother, sister, mother-in-law and father-in-law, step-mother, step-father, step-son, step-daughter and members of the family living in the same household with the employee. Proof of death may be required.
- 3. Employees may be permitted with prior approval by the Employer to utilize another type of benefit leave time (such as vacation, personal days or sick) in conjunction with bereavement leave.

#### ARTICLE 15: OTHER PAID LEAVE FROM WORK

- 1. Emergency Leave. Whenever the Prosecutor for weather or other reasons, closes the office early or requires that no Employees report to work, those Employees covered by this Agreement will be paid their regular rate of pay and will not be required to use personal, sick or vacation time.
- 2. **Jury Duty.** Employees covered by this Agreement who are called for jury duty shall not suffer loss of pay for such necessary service. An Employee shall be required to turn over or reimburse the Cumberland County Prosecutor's Office for any per diem fee received for jury duty in such cases.

# ARTICLE 16: MILITARY LEAVE

Employees covered by this Agreement who are part of a military service, including the New Jersey National Guard or United States Armed Forces Reserves, shall be entitled to such leave as may be required by law.

# ARTICLE 17: FAMILY LEAVE

The provisions of the Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and the New Jersey Family Leave Act (NJFLA) shall be abided by during the term of this contract. Leave time taken under statutory entitlements cannot be stacked or taken consecutively but shall be counted concurrently as time available under both the FMLA and the FLA. Sick leave shall run concurrent with FMLA and NJFLA leave.

#### ARTICLE 18: WORKER'S COMPENSATION BENEFITS

- 1. When an Employee is incapacitated because of a compensable occupational injury, including injury incurred while acting under the authority of N.J.S.A. 2A:158-18, (as determined by a physician designated by the County or the Employer's worker's compensation insurance carrier, representative or administrator), the Employee will be paid his/her full base salary for the initial thirty (30) days of job-related disability without loss of accumulated sick leave benefit time.
- 2. If the Employee remains incapacitated due to an occupational injury or disease beyond the initial thirty (30) day period the Employee will be entitled to worker's compensation benefits as set forth by N.J.S.A. 34:15-1 et seq.
- 3. If the Employee remains incapacitated after the initial thirty (30) day period, the county will continue to remit pension contributions for the Employee during said worker's compensation leave.

# ARTICLE 19: ASSOCIATION RIGHTS AND ACCESS

- 1. **ASAP Representatives.** The ASAP has the sole right and discretion to designate employees who are authorized to serve as the Association's representatives.
- 2. Association Communication and Information. Reasonable space will be provided by the Employer for Association materials to be posted on centrally located bulletin boards at such work sites as shall be mutually agreed upon. This space shall be designated solely for Association use.

# **ARTICLE 20: PERSONNEL RECORDS**

- 1. Upon reasonable advance written request to the Prosecutor or her designee, an Employee covered by this Agreement may arrange for the inspection of and, in fact inspect all of his/her non-confidential personnel records including copies of any non-confidential disciplinary documents which are placed in the personnel file. Copies of all records requested shall be provided to the Employee.
- 2. No adverse document shall be placed in any employee's personnel file unless a copy is also provided simultaneously to the employee.

#### ARTICLE 21: GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

- Definition. A grievance is a claimed breach, misinterpretation or improper application of the terms of this Agreement. No grievance relating to the dismissal, demotion, discipline, transfer or reduction in salary of an Employee shall advance beyond the review of the Prosecutor.
- 2. The purpose of the Grievance Procedure is to secure prompt and equitable resolutions to problems regarding the administration of this Agreement or other terms and conditions of employment.

#### 3. General Procedures.

- a. Grievances may be filed by the ASAP on behalf of an individual employee or a group of employees, and shall be governed by the procedures set forth herein. The ASAP may submit a grievance within twenty (20) calendar days of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance. The burden of proof in the grievance procedure rests with the grievant or the ASAP.
- b. The ASAP may not amend the grievance during any step of the procedure.
- c. Meetings and/or hearings shall be scheduled by the Employer after consultation with the ASAP as to availability of mutually convenient dates and times within the time limits set forth herein.
- d. The number of days indicated at each step of the grievance procedure shall be considered the maximum. The parties by written consent may alter the time limits.
- e. The lack of response by the Employer within the prescribed time periods, unless time limits have been extended by mutual, written agreement, should be construed as a negative response.
- f. At each step of the procedure, all grievance decisions shall be in writing. The Employer shall provide both the grievant and the ASAP with a copy of the grievance decision at each step of this procedure.
- g. Any employee scheduled by the parties during his/her working hours to participate in grievance procedures shall suffer no loss in pay or benefits for appearances in grievance hearings. There shall be no claim for compensatory time in the event the grievance hearing extends beyond the employee's normal work day.
- h. Where the employee or the ASAP requests employee witnesses, permission for a reasonable number of witnesses required during the grievance proceedings will be granted. A witness at such proceedings will be permitted to appear without loss of pay for the time of appearance and without payment for travel time if during his/her normal scheduled working hours. There shall be no claim of compensatory time in the event the grievance hearing extends beyond the witness' normal work day.

- i. The Employer, at any step of the grievance process, may consolidate two or more grievances on the same issue and process them as a group grievance.
- j. A Preliminary Informal Procedure shall be recognized. A Member may orally present and discuss a grievance with his/her immediate supervisor on an informal basis. A verbal disposition of the grievance shall be given to the grievant within five business days. An employee has the option of having an ASAP Representative present for the discussion. However, the ASAP shall not be bound by any informal settlement between the employee and his/her supervisor. This informal step does not preclude or mitigate the employee or ASAP from utilizing the full formal grievance procedure described in this article.

#### 4. Formal Grievance Procedure.

- a. The grievant, through the ASAP, may present the grievance in writing to the Prosecutor within twenty (20) calendar days of the date the grievant knew or should have known of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance.
- b. If a grievance is filed by an employee, the ASAP shall be notified by the Prosecutor within five (5) business days.
- c. A "step one" meeting shall be scheduled between the ASAP Representative and the Prosecutor within twenty (20) business days of receipt of the grievance, at which witnesses may be presented, examined, and cross-examined. A written disposition of the grievance shall be given to the grievant and the ASAP within ten (10) business days of the meeting.

# 5. Arbitration.

- a. A grievance which is not satisfactorily resolved at "step one" may be appealed to arbitration only by the ASAP through its designee within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the ASAP received the Prosecutor's written disposition of the grievance. If no written decision is received within the allotted timeframe in this Article, then a grievance may be appealed within thirty (30) calendar days from the conclusion of the procedure. If mutually agreed, a pre-arbitration conference may be scheduled for the purpose of attempting to settle the matter and to frame the issue or issues absent a settlement.
- b. The parties herewith agree to utilize the panel of arbitrators maintained by the New Jersey Public Employment Relations Commission ("PERC") and shall follow the procedures set forth by PERC for grievance arbitration matters. The arbitrator shall be confined to the Agreement and shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or modify the provisions of the Agreement.
- c. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding consistent with applicable law and this Agreement. The fees and expense of the arbitrator shall be divided equally between the Employer and the moving party. Any other cost of the arbitration proceeding, including the cost of recording, shall be borne by the moving party.

d. The arbitrator shall hold the hearing at a time and place convenient to the parties and shall issue his/her decision within thirty (30) calendar days after the close of the hearing.

# ARTICLE 22: SALARIES AND WAGES

As per Exhibit A, captioned "ASAP Cost of Contract Proposal", attached hereto and made a part hereof.

# **ARTICLE 23: LONGEVITY**

Effective January 1, 2017 longevity payments were eliminated.

#### ARTICLE 24: COUNTY HEALTH BENEFITS

- 1. Each member of the Association agrees to accept and enroll in OMNIA as their medical plan. If an employee chooses another plan offered by the County, as identified below, the employee will be responsible for the difference in premium paid by the County (between the OMNIA plan and the plan chosen by the employee) in addition to the applicable Chapter 78 contribution resulting from the employee's choice. Employees shall have the option of choosing, as an alternative to OMNIA, between the following medical benefits plans offered by the County: (1) Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey Direct Access (D/A) Plan; (2) Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey Point of Service (POS) Plan; (3) Horizon EPO; and, (4) EPO HSA Design II. (A summary of all current plans is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.) Employees shall contribute toward all medical benefits in accordance with the requirement of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011 (Chapter 78).
- 2. Prescription plan co-pays for all County offered health insurance plans shall be \$10.00 for generic prescriptions, \$25.00 for name brand prescriptions and \$50.00 for non-preferred brand name drugs. The stated co-pay shall cover shall cover up to a 30-day supply of the prescription; however, where the mail order prescription plan is utilized, the stated co-pay shall cover up to a 90-day supply of the prescription. Employees shall contribute toward their prescription benefits in accordance with the requirement of Chapter 78.
- 3. The County shall have the right to substitute a different insurance carrier or plan to implement a self-insured health benefits plan that provides eligible employees and eligible family members with benefits that are equivalent to or better than the benefits provided under OMNIA, the D/A Plan, POS Plan, Horizon EPO or EPO HSA Design II (whichever is being replaced) now in effect [as modified above].
- 4. In the event that the County seeks to make any subsequent changes in the delivery of health care benefits during the remainder of this Agreement, the County agrees and acknowledges that any such changes are negotiable and will provide the Association with thirty (30) days of notice before any such change is to take place, in order to permit the Association and the County to meet and discuss the proposed change and the effect of such change on bargaining unit employees.
- 5. When an employee has dependent(s) covered under the County Health Benefits Plan and such dependent(s) subsequently become ineligible to participate in the County Health Benefits Plan due to death, divorce, otherwise, the employee shall, within thirty (30) days of the event triggering the dependent's ineligibility, notify the County Department of Personnel

- & Human Resources of the change in coverage. If the employee fails to give said notification, the employee shall reimburse the County for expenditures made relating to the insurance coverage of said dependent(s) during the period of ineligibility. Moreover, the employee's failure to provide timely notice is grounds for discipline by the Employer.
- 6. The County dental plan level shall be 50/50 of covered benefit limits, with an employee contribution governed by Chapter 78. Such plan may be replaced by a plan that is equal to or better than the plan in effect at the time of the parties' execution of this Agreement.
- 7. The County shall continue optical coverage equivalent to or better than the current plan with an employee contribution governed by Chapter 78.
- 8. Retiree health benefits shall be provided in accordance with County Policy 2.11 (Health Benefits Insurance), as qualified by any requirements per state and federal law as existed in 2012. Any employee hired prior to 12/31/17 shall be eligible for retiree benefits under County Policy 2.11. There shall be no 80/20 retiree health benefits for any new employee hired after 1/1/18 once said employee reaches Medicare eligibility.
- 9. Employees will be required to make the same percentage contribution as required under Chapter 78 until successor legislation is enacted or a successor contract is negotiated.
- 10. The Emergency Room co-pay for all health insurance plans shall be \$100.00.

#### ARTICLE 25: LIFE INSURANCE

- 1. The Employer shall provide full-time Employees with life insurance coverage. The County Employee Group Life Insurance Policy Death Benefit shall be in the amount of \$7,500.00
- 2. When an authorized Leave of Absence without pay due to illness or other emergency leave is granted, life insurance shall be continued for the first thirty (30) days of said leave.
- 3. When an employee is injured on the job, life insurance benefits may be continued by the Employer in its discretion for a period not to exceed one (1) year from the date of the injury provided said injury is recognized as eligible for worker's compensation.

# **ARTICLE 26: WORK CONTINUITY**

The Employees covered by this Agreement agree that, for the life of this Agreement, there will be no strike, slow down, sick out, or other concerted action, nor will there be any individual action, the purpose of which is to induce the Employee to engage in such prohibited activity.

# **ARTICLE 27: SEVERABILITY**

If any provision of this Agreement is determined to be invalid by operation of law, or by a court or by any other legal tribunal of competent jurisdiction as to any or all Employees, such provision shall be inoperative. All other provisions of this Agreement not declared inoperative shall continue in full force and effect.

#### ARTICLE 28: FULLY NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT

- 1. The within Agreement is the complete and final Agreement reached between the parties and it contains the resolution of all issues which were the subject of negotiation. During the term of this Agreement, except only as provided in Article 7.3, neither party will be entitled to and/or required to negotiate with respect to any matter which could have been the subject of negotiation, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and/or whether or not within the knowledge of or contemplation of either or both parties at the time they negotiated or duly executed it.
- 2. This Agreement or any provision thereof may not be modified in whole or in part by the parties unless done so by them in a writing that has been duly reviewed and executed by both parties.

# **ARTICLE 29: TERM OF AGREEMENT**

This Agreement shall be effective immediately on the date of signing below, and retroactively to January 1, 2021, and shall continue in full force and effect through December 31, 2025. The parties shall commence negotiations on a successor Agreement pursuant to regulations of the Public Employment Relations Commission.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their duly authorized representatives to affix their signatures this 13th day of \_\_\_\_\_\_, 2021.

For the County:

Joseph Derella

Cumberland County Freeholder Director

Date:

Kim Wood 5-12-2021

Cumberland County Administrator

Date:

For the Prosecutor:

Jennifer Webb-McRae 5

Cumberland County Prosecutor

Date!

For the Association:

Cathryn E. Wilson

ASAP Negotiations Representative

Date: 5/11/2021

Danielle R. Pennino

ASAP Negotiations Representative

Date: 5/11/2021

David D. Weber

ASAP Negotiations Representative

Date: 5/11/2021

# EXHIBIT A

# ASAP Cost of Contract Proposal

Employees promoted to Team Leader during this transition will to elevate the minimum salary for Tone and Any promoted to Team Leader during this transition will to	There is no step guide for this unit. The		Position tarbescripe Least Name Senior Trial Attorney Senior Trial Attorney Senior Trial Attorney Team Leader
during this transition will be	TB is bossesses	868;012	## Pre-Contact ### Base.  110/622 110/622 110/622 103/600 101/933 05/422 85/491 80,000 80,000
n plan to elev	40,823 4.7%	908,835	2.5% 2021 113,388 113,388 113,388 105,190 104,481 97,000 91,000 85,000 85,000
ate the min	34,772 3.8%	943,607	2.5% 2.022 116,223 116,223 116,223 108,845 107,093 100,000 97,000 91,000 91,000
imum salanı	28,291	971 898	2.0% 2023 118,547 118,547 118,547 111,022 109,235 102,000 100,000 97,000
for Tone	21,558 21,258 2.2%		2.0% 2024 120,918 120,918 120,918 113,242 113,242 111,420 104,040 102,000 100,000
	13,324 19,868 2.0%		2.05 20025 123,336 123,336 123,336 115,507 115,507 113,648 106,121 104,040 102,000
	4,631,120		592;412 592;412 592;412 592;412 592;412 592;412 592;412 593;806 545;877 509;161 -493;000 475;000
3,1%	•		Annual .Avg % 2:3% 2:3% 2:3% 4:3% 4:4% 5:5%

Employees promoted to Team Leader during this transition will be paid at the lowest Team Leader for Team Leader to \$100,000.

Any promotion occuring after 2024 will be paid \$100,000 - 4.

Any promotion occuring after 2024 will be paid \$100,000 - 4.

# EXHIBIT B

_
ä
5
Ý
t
Ħ
2
8
ő
=

	EPO 115A Besign 11	Colodin Controlla	wiru	Tree Franch Aggregate Laws Comb states Comb	1000)	11/08	310,000	Library C	Puping nu	(OOT) and deductible and \$70 cupus	LOWER A CHARTEN PRODUCED IN WILL & STANSSILES	Copart applies to 1th visit andy	Description of the second of t	Phones and a contract		100.	i		F-201	1001: all of defectable on effect on Laborers	1001: after declarate to effect	ANTIA BELL ENCARRENT IN CONCASSAN ELLINY	100; s. Litt State table and \$210 copay per	100: 180 deserte	1001 to a describit	1965) after desired by		1001 . effer dedactalls and \$100 fecilery capsy	IDOT: PAN Echanala	19Uri after ded seable 1,000 engage	1907; after ded exchas 5100 coper	HOST LEAD deductable and \$310 capay	IQC: 104 Galetals	TWO AND GRANDLE and September	per alone decadable and 1110 copy	1307) iller debeckle	100% ofter dasheable and 348 copsy	1007 i after diductate and 1230 copyy	100: 10 de desemble	100%; after deducable and 345 capay	130% s fice deductable	100's offer debetable and office topsymme	1001: the dolerate	100* . s.frer dechocial to	10015 the Commission and 570 apray	DOTA the Adventite	100% of a dedwayle	King orders is and cope parties of fire.
	. 18	Colomby Ver	51,160	Marie II Calcalut Year		2,180	Unimen	Parket Mark	100 t s/to 579 copy	Arteralian con the Signature	والقيمية والإفاساتية والماساتية الماساتية	a Laurey Observad Deserta	Cress and applications of hibs	10:18 for activity Outsains feeling	Ę		100;*	100.	20 (100)	1013 After deduction in Ourseast factors	100's a Control of the Control of Control		13% silver dealors by c	17th the County	10% of a deduction	10% of a dedaction		torie aller Store facility copay	160%	BOTS ofter deductible		10% after dolarable	10% after destruction 1001 - after \$10 per-ex		AUTO A PART Andreada	1915 after deductible		Este efter doductible	(Other deduction)	100	13; efter kednerale	1901) after affice topal posmi	1001	Ballather didrectate	1907 after the copper		1139 Capa per administra	lotte after de tracte de la contraction de la co
	HATA THE STATE OF	Navi	PEZ.	1904.	7.130	5,000	Managa	P-Umen Inc	1001; 40m 11 mper	Arcteristing toward towists specialist.		District of the state of the st	Copy and opinionally and distri-				is	, to:	1905, mallicar Labory	100% after \$13 coper in Outputent factory	1005s after \$15 coper to Cuspan and facility	S130 Chart are administra	1001	1000	1071	107.	100% after \$140 (as as as	100.	1000	160:1 1/10 STAN PENAV		1370)	100% shq 113 sopey	2001	2005-100-111-00-1	120% 124 513 0944		(Ba)t,	100% s for \$13 topay	190:	ioni, and an	indicate and a second		1001 the \$5 ears	1907 ta Der 53 capary	1805.	Store after 515 topophant in effect belier A.	Owners Falling
TO A CALEDIA	LEAST WILD KREET  MARKET BALLAND COLORS  CARBAILT REF	2 1 2 X	Dedwible is Calmin You	1991	12,000	Unimica	Net Required	1001) r.fter 110 con at	A Triangle and Sea cours	1001: the \$10 sepay	Departed Libers are of the for the compromised		Aury on may 134 to the seaferness in the		130	IOCE	1983		10016 in office or Laborap	POT: N a(Bec	1007 to Oxenhar fulling	1000- 40ts 5250 copsy per admission	100.	10051	1000		וסמו בולמו צוכם להולה בספוץ	1(0)1	1001; after \$ 200 county	1007: 1 Or \$100 topory	100% after \$130 copy per administra	100:	100% after 648 copar	1001: after 1350 copay per administra	190-1	10014 1/107 \$140 tepay	1001: 4ft 178 cons per delication	1001	105-14 efter Sed engay	1505.	100% after office equaganti	(100);	196:5	10011. LAT 310 copy	1001.	loot:	100% after copayment in office assist	1900 t in Ontpatron facilety
DESIGN 10	A Set beinger	Two fectors bis Louis	ton ton	11,000	54.600	Letenated		of 111 coury		١.	i	601 after dealers		Christian de Sirie		(Of: (as defectible)	4011 (se deductible)		Collang betwilde	lotte debetate		OC. of the deductible	(O) to flow feed entable	60'Sefter dalletable	60: 10. tolerbak		OD Copies	60% of a deducible	60% chw basensia	4	Miles Are dedected):	4011 s Bar 4 sheetall.	O COLONIA DE LA	407. s & a forter table	Constant and and	The second secon	GUTA she dalenthe	60't stor ded seable	CO:1 slice drawable	LOT: After deductable	40th after deducted la	6011 and debatale	COTA S Day decidentally	Carried about he	the to too will	10% after dedarable	SOLVene didentible	Crafts part fulctions
HORIZON POS DESIGN 10	Politikanig Cueda	Defendablication	1991	8 2 3	CHEMIS	P. Paralis		1907, s. P. of 113 capay	1907: alle 111 man	Capar spiles to lis visionly	Department children or the labe for placement Character I Danger	100% + Cor 311 cape y		8		136.		1001's in effice or Laboras	1001's in Outracian facility	1005-in Ourwices facility	(86)	1001	100%	1901	1991			1000	1001		(94%)	ICC: alloy \$13 court		100:	1007: 47er \$13 court		10011	100:1 all 211 apper	A THE COLUMN	1000.5	1007's after siffer expressions	1991;	Velie	UM) I for effice this copie	1077.4	1301	lights effer effer constants	Liveled 4 err rein
T ACCESS 510	(Arthritish Alghans), Feet	1 2	, ig	31,720	Unimica	l E	60" i and dedectale	Continue desbueible	COS . Or debuth			60% 1 flat delenable		(ACT) (no dudentity)	Cotto free distantantes	COT: (no def. CO.)		60" i Ula dedecible	40% ofter deduction		60% after dedenitale	GOT AND SECTION IS	LOTE : The deductible	60% the debetable	SUN LINE SCHOOLS	To copyry	GOT A DO deducable	ACIa no de dependent	60% of a deducable	191701111111111111111111111111111111111	60't y for action to	60% after deducable	100:00	40): after deductible	60:1 after deducable	The state of the s	Min aller deductible	60% ofter deductible	1000	Arrana management	rais sing exercise;	60% And describle	7	60% after destacable	the se los wets		60% offer skelmersbic	reds per lifeture
HOHIZON DIRECT ACCESS 518	Calanda Yea	Deducible Is Calon	270	53.00	Liveries	التهميا هم	IDS: 10c 770 tears	A referral to not required.	Copy sayles to lawin orth	Depotes shiften and de he him		Trees and copy		<u>*</u>	1,001	1861		10% ontained forth	100% in office	AND III DOWN	tok	750	1001	10%	Table September	1005 hafter \$100 capery	10.5	3	1:01	197,	:02:	10Ct after \$30 consystems	195,	:40	160% after 370 conveners	1	103	100% sher \$20 coperment	105	lOUI's after affice consument	144	7501	1007 s flor 170 canar	15.	100		100% after affect expaps out	was a special
21115-55	Personal Version December Individual Fearsh	Ginnerar	ומששיים מייים ווייים	Umetit Period Alasiman	Primary Gover Physician Schoolen				Motorally Visits		Allogy Tohng and Tittham		Routes Adul Physical, GVH Exert	Stemat County Sursing	WALCHIE EARS	Well Chel Introduction and Lead	Withhild Presidents	Libertiany	Outpetent N. Raythe Hology Sarriers	M	(Ajedynia saproje)					Greekener Rean	11	Harrist Outpict Surger	- 100	Indiana	Outstand			Outstand	Medad Abus Services	Patient	Odpsibal	Otios Scing	Outbrie Surviv	Dishtic Edecates	Osberte Supplier	Deable Medical Dyagramet	Orbales and herbell sem	House Steads Care	Harpier Cure		formaty for banks on marion descent	

3		
7		

CTO IESA Unign II  LEGICAL CHARGE  TO THE GRANGE CONTRIBUTION  TO THE CO	10% ofter dedectals
1001209 0.1014 .   157 c.	Alta Orbe (20 Diylogy)
1001120011  The standard of th	Nub Chair (9
HONTEDA REO  MANASTERIA HINTERIA  MANASTERIA HINTERIA  Libria Corie per Vendra para  Libria Corie per Vendra per Vendra para  Libria Corie per Vendra per Ven	Malician (Policy Supply) Commal Drugs - 116 Copes
The state of the s	Comer Drugs - 514 Capay Drugs Hang Drugs - 513 Capay New Profession Hand Hand
	Ne Park
Park   Variable   OFF   Control   Park   Variable   V	New Trainers I Brand Messs Dings - 530 Capry
00 000	r. hal
Einheiter  Service Bankluden Fusiya byasisa  Service Bankluden Fusiya byasisa  Parisa Dramer Persona  Parisa Dramer  Parisa Dramer  Parisa Dramer  Salisa bengala Servi  Salisa Servi  Sal	

\* Pofetti prikmaany Chiells fins samany as of fraccourt 31, 1911, fout banks remony will be provided operating